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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT _
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA st 0., SR O
13-20920:CR-ALTONAGA/SIMONTON
18 U.S,C, § 1951(n)

18 U.8.C. § 201 (b)(2)(C)
18 U.S.C. § 1001(2)(3)
18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
VS,
AN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

Defendant,

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

Department of Homeland Security

1, The United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) is a federal agency

he Executive Branch of the United States Government and is charged with administering

2 United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) is an investigative
¥ within DHS and is responsible for investigating a wide range of domestic and
‘ ional activities arising from the illegal movement of people and goods into, within, and

out of] the United States,
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3. Homeland Security Investigations (HSI) is a sub-agency within ICE and its
agenfs, known as Special Agents, are responsible for investigating various federal crimes,
including, but not limited to, immigration, narcotics, and financial crimes.
Office of Foreign Assets Control

4, The Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) of the United States Department of
lreasury administers and enforces economic and trade sanctions consistent with United
¢l foreign policy and national security interests, These sanctions are imposed against
efed foreign countries, terrorists, international narcotics traffickers, weapons proliferators,
her national security, foreign policy, or economic threats. OFAC imposes controls on
tions and freezes assets under United States jurisdiction. OFAt;) also maintains a list of

individuals and companies subject to these controls and United States persons are generally

Bited from dealing with them. This list is known as the Specially Designated Nationals

The Defendant

5. Defendant JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ (MARTINEZ) was first employed as a
Agent by the United States Customs Service in 2001. In 2003, the United States
ms Service was absorbed within DHS, at the time a new federal department, and became
Ml as ICE. MARTINEZ remains a Special Agent with ICE,

6. MARTINEZ, as a Special Agent for ICE, has the authority lo investigate
ions of federal law, including, but not limited to, immigration, narcotics, and financial
In this professional capacity, MARTINEZ has also had unique access to, and

ighships with, other federal officials and their offices, including OFAC.
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Colombian Company 1
7. Colombian Company 1 is a commercial and residential construction company
locatgd in Pereira, Colombia.
B. L.F. O.-A., A. J-S, M, L. O-A., A. U-M,, and J. M-G. (hereinafter collectively

¢d to as “Company Individuals™) are either owners, officers, employees, or associated with

COUNT 1
Conspiracy to Commit Extortion
(18 U.S.C, § 1951(a))

Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the General Allegations section of this Indictment are

Beginning ot least as early as in or around July 2010, the exact date being
, and continuing through on or about March 29, 2011, in Miami-Dade County, in the
District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
did howingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with others known and

fwn to the Grand Jury to obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles

$mmodities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion™

‘ ined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant
ils co-conspirators did conspire to obtain money and property of Colombian Company ] and
jany Individuals, with the consent of Colombian Company 1 and Company Individuals,
d by wrongful use of fear of economic harm and under color of official right.

indut

OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY

3. The object of the conspiracy was for MARTINEZ and his co-conspirators to

3
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unlafyfully enrich themselves by using MARTINEZ's official position to obtain large payments
fron} Colombian Company 1 and the Company Individuals by falsely stating that Colombian
Confpany 1 and the Company Individuals were going to be put on the SDN list by OFAC and
offering to keep Colombian Company 1 and the Company Individuals off the SDN list.
MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

The manner and means by which the conspiracy was accomplished included, among
othefthings, the following:

4.. MARTINEZ would and did use his official positlon to benefit himself and his
co-c@nspirators, in that members of the conspiracy notified Colombian Company 1 and
Company Individuals that an official investigation was being conducted in the United States by
HSI fhat would result in Colombian Company 1 and Company Individuals, being placed on the

SDN List, thus, causing financial harm to the company.

5. MARTINEZ and members of the conspiracy would and did offer to use

ividuals from being placed on the OFAC SDN List, if the company, through its owners,
irs, employees, and others associated with the company, provided a large payment of money
imbers of the conspiracy,

6. MARTINEZ and members of the conspiracy would and did travel between
Colofnbia and Miami-Dade County, Florida, to carry out the conspiracy and would use the

telephione and e-mails in interstate and foreign commerce, to coordinate with co-conspirators.
7. MARTINEZ and members of the conspiracy would and did direct the Company
iduals to make wire transfer of funds in interstate and foreign commerce to accounts in the

itgdl States in order to comply with the extortionate demands.

4
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8. After payment by Colombian Company 1 and Company Individuals of the money
dem@nded, MARTINEZ and members of the conspiracy would and did deliver to Colombian

Comjpany 1 and Company Individuals, documents indicating that they were no longer the targets

of anfinvestigation being conducted in the United States by HSI.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).

COUNT 2
Extortion
(18 U.S.C. § 1951(a))

Beginning in or around July 2010, and continuing until on or about March 29, 2011, in

did
and gommodities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion”
are dfined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant
and Bs accomplices did obtain money payments, from Colombian Company 1 and Company

Individuals, with their consent, induced by wrongful use of fear of economic harm and under
colorbf official right, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(a) and 2.
COUNT 3
Bribery
(18 U.8.C. § 201(b)(2)(C))

On or about March 2, 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,

and elsewhere, the defendant,

JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
beingla public official, thal is, a Special Agent in the Department of Homeland Security, did

ingly and corruptly, directly and indirectly, demand, seek, receive, accept, and agree to

3
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i anything of value, that is, approximately $10,000 in United States cumency, in return for

Yinduced to do and omit to do an act in violation of his official duly as a Special Agent, that

¥ fraudulently obtain United States Significant Public Benefit Paroles on behalf of three
persals, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 201(b)(2)(C).
COUNT 4
Bribery
(18 U.S.C. § 201(b)(2)(C))
On or about March 25, 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and efsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
ingla public official, that is, a Special Agent in the Department of Homeland Security, did
gly and corruptly, directly and indirectly, demand, seek, receive, accept, and agree to

| anything of value, that is, approximately $6,000 in United States currency, in return for

beinglinduced to do and omit to do an act in violation of his official duty as a Special Agent, that

is, to fraudulently obtain a United States Significant Public Benefit Parole on behalf of a person,
in viglation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 201(b)(2)(C).
COUNT 5
False Writing
(18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(3))

On or about March 2, 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and ef§ewhere, the defendant,

JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

Matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the Government of the United
States) that is, the United States Department of Homeland Security, did knowingly and willfully
d use a false writing and document, knowing the writing and document to contain

make B

6
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invesfigation”; when, in truth and in fact, and as the defendant then and there well knew, these

individuals were not witnesses/cooperators in support of an ongoing narcotic investigation, in

violalion of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001(a)(3).
COUNT 6
False Writing
(18 U.S.C. § 1001(a)(3))
On or about March 25, 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,
and elewhere, the defendant,

JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

Matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the Government of the United

in a

Stated) that is, the United States Department of Homeland Security, did knowingly and willfully
makeland use a false writing and document, knowing the writing and document to contain
matetfally false, fictitious, and fraudulent statements and entries, in that the defendant wrote and
used 4 DHS Significant Public Benefit Parole Authorization Form stating that the parolee “is the
depentlent of a witness against” indicted individuals who were high-ranking members of a drug
traffidking organization; when, in truth and in fact, and as the defendant then and there well
knewithe parolee was not the dependent of a witness against indicted individuals who were
high-tinking members of a drug trafficking organization, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code Bection 1001(a)(3).
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COUNT 7
Extortion
(18 U.S.C, § 1951(a))

Beginning in or around late 2009, and continving until in or around March 2010, in
anil-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
owingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles
odities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion”
are ddfined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant
did ofitain money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, a diamond ring, from
anothgr, C. A. G., with his consent, under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, United
StategiCode, Section 1951(a).

COUNT 8
Extortion
(18 U.5.C. § 1951(a))

In or around Apnl 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and
elsewlere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
Wwingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles
odities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion”
ined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant
Main money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, bottles of liquor, from
‘C. A. G., with his consent, under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, United

anothe

StatesLode, Section 1951(a).
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COUNT 9
Extortion
(18 U.S8,C, § 1951(a))
Beginning on or about April 30, 2010, and continuing until on or about May 3, 2010, in
|-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
kibwingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles
odities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion”
gfined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant
Btain money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, airline tickets, from
gr, C. A. G., with his consent, under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, United
ode, Section 1951(a).
COUNT 10
Extortion
(18 U.S.C. § 1951(a))

Beginning in or around July 2010, and continuing until in or around December 2010, in
iamitDade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,
pwingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement o_f articles
odities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “ex{ortion”
efined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant

nin money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, a wristwatch, from another,

(5., with his consent, under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, United States
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COUNT 11
Extortion
(18 U.S.C, § 1951(a))

In or around October 2010, in Miarmi-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida,

and efsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

kilbwingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles

did oPiain money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, a rifle and scope, from
anoth@r, C. A. G, with his consent, under color of official right, in violation of Title 18, United
StategCode, Section 1951(a)
COUNT 12
Extortion
(18 U.S.C. § 1951(a))

Beginning in or around February 2009, and continuing until on or about March 29, 2011,

in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendant,
JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

did knwingly and unlawfully obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of articles

and cainmodities in commerce, by means of extortion, as the terms “commerce” and “extortion”

efined in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951(b)(2) and (b)(3), in that the defendant

did olfain money and other property not due to the defendant, that is, varions cash payments,
totaling approximately $150,000 dollars, from another C. A. G., with his consent, under color of
officiallright, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(a).

10
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CRIMINAL FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

a. Paragraphs 1 through 8 of the General Allegations section and the allegations of
Counf§ | through 12 of this Indictment are re-alleged and by this reference fully incorporated
hereig for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America of certain property in
whiclithe defendant has an interest, pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code,
Sectidgh 981(2)(1)(C), and the procedures of Title 21, United States Code, Section 853,

b. Upon conviction of any offense alleged in Counts 1-4, and 7-12 of this
Indictihent, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States
JSection 981(a)(1)(C), all property, real or personal, constituting, or derived from, proceeds
d directly or indirectly as a result of such offenses.

¢, If the property described above, as being subject to forfeiture, as a result of any
act orfdmission of the defendant,

(1)  cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(2)  has been transferred, sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

(3)  has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(4)  has been substantially diminished in value; or

(5)  has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided

without difficulty,
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to
seek flirfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of the above forfeitable
propergy.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C), as made applicable by

H

3:39PM ; No. 1421 P _H




TS

B R S

T,

e

3:39PM

Code, Section 853.

| A
BN E. GIUEERT

ANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

12

No. 1421 P, 12

3-cr-20929-CMA Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 12/19/2013 Page 12 of 15

8, United States Code, Section 2461(c), and the procedures set forth at Title 21, United

A TRUE BILL

FOREFERSON ~—

A U—\z é"‘% Climnd QY.

{EDO A. FERRER
D STATES ATTORNEY




No. 1421 P. 13

Dec. 20. 2018 3:39PM
. NITED ST, S DIST
Case 183-cr-20929-CMA %’g&%ga”%w%w&]jg 12/19/2013 Page 13 of 15
UNITED : ATES OF AMERICA CASE NO,
¥Ss,
CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*
JUAN FE PE MARTINEZ,
Defendant.
{ Superseding Case Information:
Court Diviflion: (Select One) New Defendant(s) Yes No
Number of New Defendants -
X __ Migmi Key West _ Total number of counts —
FTE WFPB FTP -

1. | have carefully considersd the allegations of the Indictment, 1he humber of defendants, the number of
probable wilnesses and the legal complexities of the Indictment/information attached hereto.

2l lam aware that the Information Si:fplied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this
Courl in setting their calendars an scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial
Act, Tille 28 U'S.C. Section 3161, '

3. Interpreter; (Yes or Nol No
List language andfor dialect ———

4. This case will lake 10 days for the parties to try.

5. §| Please check appropriate category and type of offense listad below:
(Chatk onty one} (Check only ena)

| 0 to 5days Petty

H§ 68 lo10 da)!fs X Minor 7 =

M W 111020 days Misdem.

v 21 to 60 days Felony .

\Y 61 days and over eSS

l[;{a ihis case been previously filed In this District Court? (Yes or No) _No _

Ju!::l Case No.

Altagh copy of dispositive order)

Ifas i complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No___

yes

Magigtrate Case No.

Relaled Miscellaneous numbers:

Defey dant?s in federal custody as of

Defefidani(s) in state cuslody as of

Rulef20 from lhe Dislrict of

Is thi§ a polential death penally case? (Yes or No) No_

7 Does this case originate from a rmatter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney’s Office
priorto  October 14, 20037 Yes — X No

8,

Does this case originate from a matler pending in the Leniral Region of the U.S, Aftorney’s Office
prior to September 1, 20077 Yes } :_[No

KAREN E. GILBERT -
ASSISTANT UITED STATES ATTORNEY
Florida Bar No."771007

*Penalty Shesl(s) attached REV 4/8/08
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defefidant's Name: JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

118, United States Code, Section 1951(a)

% Penalty: 20 Years’ Imprisonment

“Refens only to possible term of Incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,
special assessments, parole terms, or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

fldant's Name: JUAN FELIPE MARTINEZ,

48, United Stateg Code, Section 1951(a)

& Penalty: 20 Years' Imprisonment

¢rs only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,
special assessments, parole terms, or forfeitures that may be applicable,




